
City of Capitola Agenda  

 

   

Mayor: Ed Bottorff  

Vice Mayor: Stephanie Harlan  

Council Members: Jacques Bertrand  

 Dennis Norton  

 Michael Termini  

Treasurer: Christine McBroom  

   

 

 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 22, 2016 
 

7:00 PM 
 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010 

 
CLOSED SESSION - 6:30 PM 
CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE 

An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in 
the City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at 
this time, address the City Council on closed session items only.  There will be a report of 
any final decisions in City Council Chambers during the Open Session Meeting. 

 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

[Gov’t Code§54956.9(d)(1)] 

(Two cases) 
 

1. City of Capitola v. D’Angelo 
[Santa Cruz County Superior Court Case No. CV 181659] 

 
2. Water Rock Construction, Inc. v. City of Capitola  

[Arbitration Claim] 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
September 22, 2016 

City of Capitola Page 2 Updated 9/16/2016 1:47 PM 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - 7:00 PM 
All correspondences received prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday preceding a Council 
Meeting will be distributed to Councilmembers to review prior to the meeting.  Information 
submitted after 5 p.m. on that Wednesday may not have time to reach Councilmembers, nor 
be read by them prior to consideration of an item. 
 
All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be 
considered as Public Hearings. 

 1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Members Dennis Norton, Stephanie Harlan, Jacques Bertrand, Michael Termini and 
Mayor Ed Bottorff 

 2. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Proclamations Honoring Police Chief Rudy Escalante  

B. Legislative Update Provided by Assemblymember Mark Stone  

 3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

 4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

Additional information submitted to the City after distribution of the agenda packet. 

 5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

 6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on 
any item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   
Individuals may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must 
address the entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All 
speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so 
that their name may be accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is 
set aside for Oral Communications at this time. 

 7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS 

City Council Members/City Treasurer/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or 
identify issues for staff response or future council consideration. 

 8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS 

A. Consider an Appointment to the Historical Museum Board  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Appoint David Peyton to fill the vacancy on the 
Historical Museum Board (Board) based on the Board’s recommendation.  



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
September 22, 2016 

City of Capitola Page 3 Updated 9/16/2016 1:47 PM 

 

 9. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed 
below.  There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council 
votes on the action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items 
to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered 
following General Government. 
 
Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have 
been read by title and further reading waived. 

A. Approval of City Check Registers dated August 5, August 12, August 19, and August 
26, 2016  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Check Register Reports.  

 10. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

All items listed in “General Government” are intended to provide an opportunity for public 
discussion of each item listed. The following procedure pertains to each General 
Government item:  1) Staff explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council 
deliberation; 5) Decision. 

A. Consider a Resolution Affirming the City's Intent to Participate in the Monterey Bay 
Community Power Joint Powers Authority  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution.  

B. Consider an Amendment to the Administrative Policy I-33 to Implement the In-Lieu 
Parking Fee Program  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Amend Administrative Policy.  

C. Consider a Resolution for Exception to the 180-Day Wait Period Per Government 

Code§7522.56 and§21221(h); and Approve Agreement with Rudolph Escalante for 

Interim Police Chief Services  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution and Agreement.  

D. Presentation Regarding Propositions 65 and 67  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive presentation and provide direction.  

 11. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Note: Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in 
which, by law, a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in 
the determination of facts is vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action 
within ninety (90) days following the date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6. Please refer to code of Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate 
when a decision becomes “final.” Please be advised that in most instances the decision become “final” 
upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion of the public hearing. Failure to 
comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City Council decision in 
court. 
 
 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
September 22, 2016 

City of Capitola Page 4 Updated 9/16/2016 1:47 PM 

 
 
Notice regarding City Council: The City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month 
at 7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola. 
 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet 
are available for review on the City’s website: www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City Hall and at 
the Capitola Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, prior to the meeting. Agendas are also 
available at the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola. Need more information? 
Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300. 
 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet: Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California, during normal business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act: Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons 
with a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990. Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting 
in the City Council Chambers. Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting 
due to a disability, please contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 
831-475-7300. In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are 
requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products. 
 
Televised Meetings: City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the 
meetings and at 1:00 p.m. on Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25). Meetings are streamed “Live” on 
the City’s website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on the Home Page link “Meeting Video.” 
Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at anytime. 

 

http://www.cityofcapitola.org/
http://www.cityofcapitola.org/


 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 22, 2016 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Proclamations Honoring Police Chief Rudy Escalante  
 

 
 

DISCUSSION: Police Chief Rudy Escalante has announced his retirement after providing 32 
years of service to the cities of Capitola, Watsonville and Santa Cruz. Throughout his tenure in 
Capitola, Chief Escalante has lead the Department by displaying the very qualities that are so 
critical in policing today: honesty, commitment to the organization, creativity, humility and 
fairness. 
 
It is with great pleasure that proclamations will be read at the September 22, 2016, City Council 
meeting by the Assembly Member Mark Stone and Mayor Ed Bottorff. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Retiring Police Chief Escalante Proclamation 
 

Report Prepared By:   Susan Sneddon 
 City Clerk 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

2.A

Packet Pg. 5



City of Capitola 
Mayor's Proclamation 

Honoring 
Retiring Police Chief Rudy Escalante 
WHEREAS, Chief Rudy Escalante officially began his law enforcement career with the 

City of Santa Cruz as a Police Officer in 1985, then in 2009 became Deputy Chief of Police for 
the City of Watsonville; and • 

WHEREAS, Chief Escalante was appointed as Capitola's Chief of Police on April 1, 
2012, and will officially retire on September 30, 2016, after nearly 32 years of outstanding and 
meritorious service to the residents of the cities of Capitola, Santa Cruz and Watsonville; and 

WHEREAS, Chief Escalante has a strong commitment to community involvement and 
built partnerships between the city, other agencies, and non-profit; and served on numerous 
boards and commissions such as: Janus of Santa Cruz, an alcohol and drug rehabilitation 
nonprofit group; Capitola Public Safety Foundation, a nonprofit devoted to supporting public 
safety initiatives; Santa Cruz County Anti-Crime; Santa Cruz County Law Users Group; 
California Police Chief's Law and Legislative Committee; California Police Chief's State 
Firearms Committee; Santa Cruz County Metro Records System Executive Group; and Santa 
Cruz County Criminal Justice Council; and 

WHEREAS, during his tenure as Chief of Police he has been a committed and 
outstanding leader who has excelled in hiring, promoting, developing and training a competent 
workforce of sworn, civilian employees and volunteers; and 

WHEREAS, as a result of Chief Escalante 's work with his department the City has 
realized a reduction of overall crime; and 

WHEREAS, under Chief Escalante 's leadership, the Capitola Police Department was 
the first agency in Santa Cruz County to utilize body-worn and in-car cameras, increasing 
transparency and trust in policing; and 

WHEREAS, Chief Escalante expanded the Department's social media programs 
(Nixie, Nextdoor, Facebook) and created a web link to citizen complaints; and oversaw the 
development of the City 's new property and evidence facility; and 

WHEREAS, Chief Escalante has served the City of Capitola with the highest level of 
professionalism and integrity. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ed Bottorff, Mayor of the City of Capitola, do hereby 
commend Rudy Escalante for nearly 32 years of excellence and dedicated service. It is further 
recognized that Rudy Escalante has always represented the City of Capitola with the highest 
degree of professionalism and that his contributions, past, present and future will always be 
greatly appreciated by Council Members, City staff, and most importantly the residents of the 

CityojCapUo[o. iLe~ 

Ed Bottorff, Mayor 
Signed and sealed this 22nd day of September, 2016 

2.A.1

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

et
ir

in
g

 P
o

lic
e 

C
h

ie
f 

E
sc

al
an

te
 P

ro
cl

am
at

io
n

  (
15

51
 :

 P
o

lic
e 

C
h

ie
f 

P
ro

cl
am

at
io

n
s)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 22, 2016 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider an Appointment to the Historical Museum Board  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Appoint David Peyton to fill the vacancy on the Historical Museum 
Board (Board) based on the Board’s recommendation.  
 
DISCUSSION: Pursuant to Capitola Municipal Code Section 2.28.020B, the Capitola Historical 
Museum Board shall be appointed by the Mayor, subject to the approval of three City Council 
members. There is one vacancy on the Board with a term ending June 13, 2018. At the close of 
the filing period the following two applications were received (Attachment 1):  

 Mr. Stacey Ross 

 David Peyton 

The applications were forwarded to Museum Curator Perry for review and consideration by the 
Board at its meeting of September 6, 2016. Based on interviews, the Board recommends David 
Peyton, for appointment (Attachment 2). 

The required notice regarding the vacancy was posted at City Hall, Capitola Branch Library, 
scrolled on Charter Community Channel 8, posted on the City’s website, and press releases 
issued to local publications.   

FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Applications 
2. Museum Board Recommendation 

 
Report Prepared By:   Susan Sneddon 
 City Clerk 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.A

Packet Pg. 7



AUG' 2'2 2016 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CITY CLERK 

CITY oj CAPITOLA 
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS APPLICATION 

Application for: 

o Art & Cultural Commission 
[Artist; Arts Professional; At Large Member] 
Please underline category above. 

o Finance Advisory Committee 
[Business Representative; At Large Member] 
Please underline category above. 

'){- Historical Museum Board 

o Library Advisory Committee 

Name Pf:yrDN 

o Architectural & Site Committee 
[Architect; Landscape Architect; Historian] 
Please underline category above. 

o Traffic & Parking Commission 
[Village Resident; Village Business Owner; At Large Member] 
Please underline category above. 

o Planning Commission 

o Other Committee ____________ _ 

Residential Neighborhood: PL-EAStJlZ£ 
Occupation: 72 f2.-U r?..eQ 

(Use additional paper, if necessary) 

Please Note: Appointment to this position may require you to file a conflict of interest disclosure statement 
with the City Clerk. This information is a public record and these statements are available to the public on 
request. 

Mail or Deliver Application to: 
Capitola City Hall 
Attn: City Clerk 

420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, CA 95010 

All information contained in this page of the application is public data and will be made available for public 
review and copying for anyone requesting it, and may be posted on the website of the City of Capitola. All 
information in this page will be provided to the Capitola City Council in a public forum and will be reviewed in 
public. It will therefore be part of the public record. 

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

s 
 (

15
87

 :
 M

u
se

u
m

 B
o

ar
d

 A
p

p
o

in
tm

en
t)



Application for: 

o Art & Cultural Commission 

APR 2,0 2016 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 

CITY of CAPITOLA 
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS APPLICATION 

[Artist; Arts Professional; At Large Member] 
Please underline category above. 

o Architectural & Site Committee 
[Architecl; Landscape Architect; Historian] 
Please underline category above. 

o Finance Advisory Committee 
[Business Representative; At Large Member] 
Please underline category above. 

~ Historical Museum Board 

o Library Advisory Committee 

o Traffic & Parking Commission 
[Village Resident; Vii/age Business Owner; At Large Member] 
Please underline category above. 

o Planning Commission 

o Other Committee ____________ _ 

Name: R(A:5:5 S i o. (' 9.¥ 
Last First 

Residential Neighborhood: '-\ \ ~ 7S c.. \ (~'"\LS 0\ 
c \)' . 

Occupation: :\)~~:'I ' \,e..f' t--~")C:.. ..... ~rj!,,:\I..U'~ 

Describe your qualifications and interest in serving on this Board/Commission/Committee: \=", I--:r\ 
f.1£ 0..\\ , ""L \ 'U( C .c). 0 \\ro~",. , '"I.\) t. \ 1l..) ~f.h,p~S) '.t ~~ .... () w 

(Use additional paper, if necessary) 

Please Note: Appointment to this position may require you to file a conflict of interest disclosure statement 
with the City Clerk. This information is a public record and these statements are available to the public on 
request. 

'-\- \ ~ - l~ 
Date 

Mail or Deliver Application to: 
Capitola City Hall 
Attn: City Clerk 

420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, CA 95010 

All information contained in this page of the application is public data and will be made available for public 
review and copying for anyone requesting it, and may be posted on the website of the City of Capitola. All 
information in this page will be provided to the Capitola City Council in a public forum and will be reviewed in 
public. It will therefore be part of the public record. 

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

s 
 (

15
87

 :
 M

u
se

u
m

 B
o

ar
d

 A
p

p
o

in
tm

en
t)



420 CAPITOLA AVENUE 

CAPITOLA , CALIFORNIA 95010 

TELEPHONE ( 831 ) 475-7300 

FAX ( 831 ) 479-8879 

Capitola Historical Museum 

Mayor Ed Bottorff and Capitola City Council 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 

September 8, 2016 

Subject: Appointment to Capitola Museum Board of Trustees 

Dear Mayor Bottorff and Members of the Council: 

The Capitola Historical Museum Board of Trustees recommends the appointment of 
David Peyton to fill the remainder of the term vacated earlier this year by Stephanie Kirby. 

David Peyton has been a volunteer for several organizations and events in Capitola. He 
has been a volunteer at the Museum since early 2015 and served on the committee to plan the 
Museum's 50th birthday this past July. David loves local history and sharing his enthusiasm with 
the pUblic. The board unanimously recommends his appointment. 

Sincerely, 

Frank Perry, Curator 
Capitola Historical Museum 

8.A.2

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

u
se

u
m

 B
o

ar
d

 R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

  (
15

87
 :

 M
u

se
u

m
 B

o
ar

d
 A

p
p

o
in

tm
en

t)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 22, 2016 

 
FROM:  Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of City Check Registers dated August 5, August 12, August 19, and 

August 26, 2016  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Check Register Reports.  
 
BACKGROUND: Check registers are attached for: 
 

Account: City Main 

Date Starting Check # Ending Check # Check/EFT Count Amount 

8/5/2016 84301 84344 44 $83,200.90 

8/12/2016 84345 84466 97 $312,295.73 

8/19/2016 84467 84530 65 $292,447.71 

8/26/2016 84531 84588 64 $134,853.39 

The check register of July 29, 2016, ended with check #84300   
 

Account: Payroll 

Date Starting Check # Ending Check # Check/EFT Count Amount 

8/5/2016 4928 4952 136 $182,583.40 

8/19/2016 4953 4972 133 $177,501.17 

 

 

Following is a list of checks issued for more than $10,000.00 and a brief description of each expenditure: 

 
Check Issued to Dept Description Amount 

84301 American Traffic Solutions PD Red light camera enforcement $37,617.38 

84345 Old Republic Title CDD CDBG housing loan $77,720.00 

84371 Emergency Vehicle Specialists PD New patrol vehicle equipment $16,415.09 

84452 Soquel Creek Water District PW Monthly water usage/irrigation $14,130.46 

eft309 CalPERS Member Services FN PERS contributions PPE 7-30-16 $50,006.19 

eft311 IRS FN Federal taxes & Medicare $31,335.56 

84483 Action Sports Construction PW Pump track installation $17,500.00 

84487 
Atchison Barisone Condotti & 

Kovacevich 
CM July legal services $15,990.67 

84495 City of Santa Cruz REC July – Sept. lifeguard services $68,500.00 

9.A

Packet Pg. 11



Approval of City Check Registers  
September 22, 2016 
 

84511 Pacific Gas & Electric PW Monthly utilities $15,032.64 

84516 SCC Auditor-Controller PD July citation processing $16,142.50 

84517 Santa Cruz County Bank FN Pacific Cove financing lease $82,532.87 

eft318 IRS FN Federal taxes & Medicare $31,637.26 

eft320 CalPERS Member Services FN PERS contributions PPE 8-13-16 $50,092.91 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 08-05-16 City Check Register 
2. 08-12-16 City Check Register 
3. 08-19-16 City Check Register 
4. 08-26-16 City Check Register 

 
Report Prepared By:   Maura Herlihy 
 Account Technician 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

9.A

Packet Pg. 12



9.A.1

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
05

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.1

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
05

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.1

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
05

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.1

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
05

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.1

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
05

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.1

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
05

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.2

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
12

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.2

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
12

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.2

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
12

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.2

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
12

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.2

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
12

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.2

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
12

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.2

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
12

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.2

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
12

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.2

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
12

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.2

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
12

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.2

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
12

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.2

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
12

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.2

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
12

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.2

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
12

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.3

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
19

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.3

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
19

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.3

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
19

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.3

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
19

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.3

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
19

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.3

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
19

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.4

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
26

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.4

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
26

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.4

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
26

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.4

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
26

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.4

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
26

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



9.A.4

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

8-
26

-1
6 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
12

89
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



 
 
 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 22, 2016 

 
FROM:  Community Development 
 
SUBJECT: Consider a Resolution Affirming the City's Intent to Participate in the Monterey 

Bay Community Power Joint Powers Authority  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution.  
 
BACKGROUND: Community Choice Energy (CCE) programs allow local governments to 

purchase electricity and invest in energy projects, while also establishing programs that can 

benefit local residents and businesses. Energy transmission, distribution, repair, and customer 

service would remain the responsibility of the utility provider, Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E). 

On January 10, 2013, the City Council authorized the City’s participation in an investigation of 

the technical and financial feasibility of establishing a regional, tri-county CCE program. Over 

the following three years, City staff participated in the Monterey Bay Community Power (MBCP) 

Project Development Advisory Committee (PDAC) which is comprised of representatives from 

15 of the Monterey Bay region’s 21 local governments participating in the feasibility study.  

A feasibility study was completed in May 2016, which concluded that a Monterey Bay CCE 
program is technically and financially viable. The study found a regional CCE could provide 
electricity at general rate parity with PG&E while increasing renewable energy generation, 
decreasing greenhouse gas emissions, and providing regional economic benefits. The feasibility 
study and other project documents can be reviewed on the Monterey Bay CCE website at 
www.montereybaycca.org. 

On April 28, 2016, the City Council directed staff to participate in an ad-hoc subcommittee to 
discuss governance, start-up financing options, and other CCE administrative matters. The ad-
hoc subcommittee has since met multiple times and has developed proposals for a Joint 
Powers Authority (JPA) and financing as described in the attached Resolution. 

DISCUSSION: The attached Resolution would affirm the City’s intent to participate in the 
proposed CCE JPA, under the terms outlined in the resolution. The JPA is planned to be formed 
in early 2017 and is expected to begin providing electricity to customers by spring 2018.  A 
subsequent CCE Ordinance will be presented for the City Council’s consideration prior to 
January 31, 2017 to formally join the JPA. 

As outlined in the Resolution, the proposed JPA would be composed of participating 
jurisdictions within Santa Cruz, Monterey, and San Benito Counties and would operate with a 
Policy Board consisting of elected officials and an Operations Board with city managers and 
county administrators. The Policy Board is expected to meet 2-3 times per year and would make 

10.A

Packet Pg. 45



Community Choice Energy JPA Conceptual Review  
September 22, 2016 
 
decisions related to the budget, customer rates, strategic planning, and large capital 
expenditures. The Operations Board would meet 8-12 times per year and would focus on 
routine agency operations and providing oversight and support to the Chief Executive Officer on 
electricity service and procurement matters. 

One Policy and Operations Board seat would be allocated to each JPA member unless the 
number of participating agencies exceed 11. Once the JPA reaches more than 11-member 
agencies, the Board composition would shift. Agencies with a population of 50,000 or more 
would each have one seat, whereas agencies with less than 50,000 residents would share a 
seat on a sub-regional basis.  

Staff anticipates more than 11 agencies will ultimately elect to participate, therefore governance 
will likely be based on the second model as presented in the attached Resolution. Under that 
model, Capitola’s representative would rotate with Scotts Valley on the Boards. 

Financial participation for members of the JPA is proposed as a pro-rata share of credit to 

guarantee a seed capital loan of up to $3 million to cover the costs of Agency start-up. Any loan 

or capital contributions made by a member agency would be fully reimbursable through 

ratepayer revenues. 

FISCAL IMPACT: While the City would not be responsible for contributing any of the startup 

funding, the City would be call upon to guarantee its pro-rata share of that debt.  Given it is 

uncertain how many jurisdictions will participate in the JPA it is impossible to firmly determine 

how much of the startup liability the City will guarantee; however, staff anticipates the City’s 

portion of this credit guarantee will be less than $100,000.  Other CCE programs around the 

state repaid their startup costs within a few years of beginning operations. 

 
 

Report Prepared By:   Rich Grunow 
 Community Development Director 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

10.A

Packet Pg. 46



Community Choice Energy JPA Conceptual Review  
September 22, 2016 
 
 
 

DRAFT RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AFFIRMING THE 
CITY OF CAPITOLA’S INTENT TO PARTICIPATE IN GOVERNANCE AND FINANCING 
DISCUSSIONS FOR THE PROPOSED MONTEREY BAY COMMUNITY POWER (MBCP) 

JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY (JPA) 
 

WHEREAS, representatives from various jurisdictions in Santa Cruz, Monterey, and San 
Benito counties have been meeting for the last several years to discuss forming a JPA, under 
the provisions of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the State of California (Government Code 
Section 6500 et seq.), to form a community choice aggregation program through which to 
purchase, supply, and aggregate the electrical load of their municipal, residential and 
commercial customer accounts. 

WHEREAS, in 2006, the State Legislature adopted AB 32, the Global Warming 
Solutions Act, which mandates a reduction in greenhouse gas emissions in 2020 to 1990 levels. 
The California Air Resources Board is promulgating regulations to implement AB 32 which will 
require local governments to develop programs to reduce green-house gas emissions; and  

WHEREAS, the purposes for forming the JPA include:  

A. Jointly administering a community choice aggregation (CCA) program for 
jurisdictions in the Monterey, Santa Cruz and San Benito County region; 

B. Reducing greenhouse gas emissions related to the use of power in the Monterey, 
Santa Cruz, and San Benito County region;  

C. Providing electric power and other forms of energy to customers at a competitive 
cost;  

D. Carrying out programs to reduce energy consumption;  

E. Stimulating and sustaining the local economy by developing local jobs in renewable 
energy and other energy related initiatives; and  

F. Promoting long-term electric rate stability, energy security, and reliability for residents 
through local control of electric generation resources.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Capitola 
affirms its intent to participate in governance and financing discussions for the Monterey Bay 
Community Power Joint Powers Authority (JPA) under the following general terms: 

(1) The Monterey Bay Community Power JPA is planned to be formed in early 2017, 
and the JPA expected to begin providing electrical service to customers by spring 
2018. 

(2) The Monterey Bay Community Power JPA will be composed of jurisdictions 
within the region of Monterey, Santa Cruz and San Benito Counties choosing to 
participate by passage of a JPA Agreement Resolution and CCA Ordinance as 
required by State statute.  The target deadline for passage of said Resolution 
and Ordinance is January 31, 2017. 

(3) The proposed Governing Board structure of Monterey Bay Community Power 
JPA seeks to:  

(a) Represent the interests of a large geographical area while keeping the Board 
size to a manageable level 

10.A

Packet Pg. 47



Community Choice Energy JPA Conceptual Review  
September 22, 2016 
 

(b) Reserve important policy-level decisions for elected officials through creation 
of a Policy Board that would meet 2-3 times per year or as requested by the 
Chief Executive Officer 

(c) Reserve Agency operational decisions for administrative managers (City 
managers and county administrators) through the creation of an Operations 
Board that would meet 8-12 times per year 

(d) Provide fair and equitable representation to Agency members based on 
population size (number of ratepayers) rather than electrical load size 
(volume of electric usage).  

(4) The proposed MBCP Board seats would be allocated as follows:  

(a) Policy and Operations Board seats for founding JPA members (i.e. those 
jurisdictions that pass a CCA Ordinance by January 30, 2017) which will 
remain in place unless the number of member jurisdictions exceeds 11 

(b) Once the JPA reaches more than 11 member agencies, the Policy and 
Operations Boards’ composition shall shift to a regional allocation based on 
population size.  

(c) This allocation shall be one seat for each jurisdiction with a population of 
50,000 and above, and shared seats for jurisdictions with populations below 
50,000 allocated on a sub-regional basis.   

(d) Under current population estimates, the Board seats in the Tri-County area 
would be allocated as follows:  

i. 1 seat for Santa Cruz County 

ii. 1 seat for Monterey County 

iii. 1 seat for the City of Santa Cruz 

iv. 1 seat for the City of Salinas 

v. 1 seat for the City of Watsonville 

vi. 1 shared seat for remaining Santa Cruz cities including Capitola and 
Scotts Valley selected by the City Selection Committee 

vii. 1 shared seat for Monterey Peninsula cities including Monterey, Pacific 
Grove, and Carmel selected by the City Selection Committee 

viii. 1 shared seat for Monterey Coastal cities including Marina, Seaside, Del 
Rey Oaks, and Sand City selected by the City Selection Committee 

ix. 1 shared seat for Salinas Valley cities including King City, Greenfield, 
Soledad, Gonzales selected by the City Selection Committee 

x. 1 shared seat for San Benito County and cities selected by the City 
Selection Committee 

(e) It is proposed that the member of the Policy Board and Operations Board 
shall be from the same jurisdiction.   

(f) The Policy Board of elected officials would meet three times per year with the 
option for special meetings as determined by the Chief Executive Officer.  It is 
proposed that the Policy Board would provide guidance/approval in the 
following areas:  

i. Strategic planning and goal setting 

ii. Passage of Agency budget and customer rates 

10.A

Packet Pg. 48



Community Choice Energy JPA Conceptual Review  
September 22, 2016 
 

iii. Large capital expenditures outside the typical power procurement 
required to provide electrical service 

(g) The Operations Board of appointed County Administrative Officers or City 
Managers from participating jurisdictions would meet no less than 8 times per 
year and would focus on the routine operations of the Agency and provide 
oversight and support to the Chief Executive Officer on matters pertaining to 
the provision of electrical service to customers in the region. 

(5) Financial participation contemplated for members of MBCP JPA is proposed as a 
pro-rata share of credit support to guarantee a seed capital loan of up to $3M to 
implement the program and cover the costs of Agency start up.   

(a) The County of Santa Cruz on behalf of the proposed MBCP will issue an RFP 
for banking and credit services to solicit credit and terms associated with 
provision of said capital 

(b) The final amount of required credit and the level of guarantee to cover pre-
revenue expenses will be confirmed once ordinances are passed and the 
size of the program is known 

(c) Should the program fail to launch and the Agency were to default on the loan, 
the city/County would be required to fund its portion of any outstanding loan 
balance  

(6) Any loan or capital contribution made by a member Agency to the JPA is fully 
reimbursable through ratepayer revenues at terms mutually agreeable by the 
jurisdiction and JPA 

(7) Passage of this Resolution authorizes staff of the City of Capitola to participate in 
discussions in anticipation of MBCP JPA formation. It does not, however, bind 
the City of Capitola to membership in the JPA, allocation of general funds, or 
participation in a future CCA program. If the City of Capitola chooses to move 
forward, it will be required to pass a Resolution for JPA membership, authorize a 
pro-rata share of credit support, and pass a CCA Ordinance by January 31, 
2017. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted 
by the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 22nd day of 
September 2016, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
         _______________________ 
         Ed Bottorff, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

10.A

Packet Pg. 49



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 22, 2016 

 
FROM:  Community Development 
 
SUBJECT: Consider an Amendment to the Administrative Policy I-33 to Implement the In-

Lieu Parking Fee Program  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Amend Administrative Policy.  
 
BACKGROUND: The City Council adopted Administrative Policy I-33 for the In-Lieu Parking 
Fee Policy on October 10, 2013. The City Council reviewed the Policy on September 8, 2016, 
and directed staff to return with a revised Policy for Council adoption. 
 
DISCUSSION: The current In-Lieu Parking Fee Policy was adopted to allow large Village hotel 
projects with valet service to satisfy parking requirements through the purchase or lease of 
parking spaces in Beach and Village Parking Lot #1. Following a review of the Policy on 
September 8, 2016, the City Council directed staff to revise the Policy to reduce the number of 
in-lieu parking spaces from 57 to 56 and to allow smaller visitor serving lodging facilities to 
purchase up to 10 spaces.   
 
Administrative Policy I-33 has been revised accordingly and is shown in strikeout/underline 
format (Attachment 1). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Revised Administrative Policy I-33 - In-Lieu Parking Fee Program 
 

Report Prepared By:   Rich Grunow 
 Community Development Director 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

10.B

Packet Pg. 50



 

                           ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 
 
 

 
 
 

                                                  IN-LIEU PARKING FEE PROGRAM 
 
 
I. PURPOSE 

 
The purpose of this policy is to establish an In-Lieu Parking Fee Program (Program) for new 
hotel uses in the Village. The Program allows eligible development projects to purchase off-
site parking spaces from the City in-lieu of providing on-site parking. 

 
II. POLICY 

  
New large hotels, as defined by Municipal Code section 17.03.320 which provide a valet 
service, proposed in the Central Village zoning district may request to participate in the 
Program by submitting an application to the Community Development Department. An 
applicant for a large hotel project may request to purchase any or all of the allotted 57 56 
parking spaces designated for the Program.  Up to ten of the 56 spaces shall be available to 
smaller hotel projects.  Applications shall include an economic analysis showing both direct, 
and indirect economic impacts of the proposed project. 
 
Applications shall be considered by the City Council, and may be approved if the following 
findings can be made: 
 

1. The proposed project is consistent with the City’s Local Coastal Plan and the Coastal 
Act 

2. Offsite parking for the proposed project would reduce traffic impacts and provide a 
design more consistent with the historic character of the village. 

3. The proposed project will help to facilitate the City’s economic development goals. 
 
If approved, the applicant shall be required to submit payment prior to issuance of a grading 
or building permit, whichever comes first. The in-lieu fee rate shall be determined by the City 
Council based on the cost of constructing a parking structure at the time the application is 
submitted. The applicant may propose the establishment of an annual assessment rather than 
an up-front payment of fees. Such annual assessment proposal may be approved or denied by 
the City Council. 
 
Parking spaces designated for the Program shall be located in the upper Pacific Cove parking 
lot. The designated parking area shall be conspicuously marked and shall be for the exclusive 
use by employees and guests of Program participants. Prior to issuance of a building permit, 
applicants shall be required to submit a plan to secure, monitor, and enforce the use of 
purchased parking spaces to the satisfaction of City staff. The parking area shall be secured 
to the City’s satisfaction prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy. 

Number:  I-33 
Issued:  October 10, 2013 
Revised:  September 22, 2016 
Jurisdiction:  City Council 
 

10.B.1

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
is

ed
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

P
o

lic
y 

I-
33

 -
 In

-L
ie

u
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 F
ee

 P
ro

g
ra

m
  (

16
05

 :
 In

-L
ie

u
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 F
ee

 P
o

lic
y)



Administrative Policy I-33 
In-Lieu Parking Fee Program 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

 
The Community Development Department shall maintain a record of all properties that have 
fulfilled their parking requirements through payment of in-lieu fees. In the event that a 
property or use is sold to another party, the purchased parking spaces shall transfer to the new 
owner(s). Parking spaces may not be sold, transferred, or shared with other parties to meet 
parking requirements of other uses not authorized by the original permit. In-lieu fees paid to 
meet parking requirements shall be non-refundable. 
 
Revenue collected from the Program shall be deposited into an interest bearing account 
established for the sole purpose of contributing to the financing of a future parking facilities, 
such as a multi-level parking structure located on the upper Pacific Cove property.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
This policy is approved and authorized by:  

 
 

                                                                                ____________________________ 
Jamie Goldstein, City Manager  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10.B.1

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
is

ed
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

P
o

lic
y 

I-
33

 -
 In

-L
ie

u
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 F
ee

 P
ro

g
ra

m
  (

16
05

 :
 In

-L
ie

u
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 F
ee

 P
o

lic
y)



 
 
 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 22, 2016 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider a Resolution for Exception to the 180-Day Wait Period Per Government 

Code § 7522.56 and § 21221(h); and Approve Agreement with Rudolph 
Escalante for Interim Police Chief Services  

 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution and Agreement.  
 
BACKGROUND: The City's Chief of Police Rudolph Escalante is scheduled to retire on 
September 30, 2016. Chief Escalante has offered his services as Interim Police Chief to allow 
the City time to complete the recruitment for the City’s next Police Chief. According to the 
California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) post retirement employment rules, 
the City may enter into a one-time only agreement with Chief Escalante to provide Police Chief 
Services for no more than 960 hours per fiscal year with Council approval. Staff recommends 
the City enter into an agreement with Chief Escalante to serve as Capitola’s Interim Police Chief 
from October 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017, or until a new Chief of Police has been hired. 
This will not exceed the June 30, 2016, time limit. It is anticipated that the recruitment period will 
be completed within eight (8) weeks, however it may extend longer. 
 

DISCUSSION: The City Council is authorized by the applicable provisions of Government Code 
(GC) §21221(h) to appoint a retiree to fill a vacant position on an interim basis during the 
recruitment to permanently fill a vacant position. These appointments must be made by the City 
Council and are generally used for single or unique positions, such as interim city manager, 
police chief, director, or other managerial and executive positions. An open recruitment to 
permanently fill the vacant position is required in order to appoint a retiree. A retiree can be 
appointed only once to the position, thus the employment terms must specify an end date and 
cannot be amended to extend the appointment term. A retiree appointed more than once is 
subject to mandatory reinstatement. 
 
GC §7522.56 provides that a retiree is eligible for post-retirement employment 180 days 
following his or her retirement date. This requirement applies to retiree employment that begins 
after January 1, 2013. There are exceptions to the 180-day wait period that are outlined in the 
GC and apply to this case, including the following: (a) firefighter or public safety officer (which 
status is determined in accordance with the definition set forth in California Code of Regulations 
§579.25) hired to perform a function or functions regularly performed by a public safety officer or 
firefighter, (b) public agency or school employer provides a resolution certifying the nature of the 
employment and that the appointment is necessary to fill a critically needed position before 180 
days has passed. Additional requirements to GC §21221(h) relate to compensation for the 

10.C

Packet Pg. 53



Chief of Police - Retired Annuitant  
September 22, 2016 
 
retiree. First, his or her compensation must be reflected as an hourly rate, which is no higher 
than the maximum monthly base salary paid to employees performing similar duties, as listed 
on a publicly available pay schedule, divided by 173.333. The maximum base salary for this 

position is $1,2916.00 per month and the hourly equivalent is $74.52. The hourly rate 
recommended to be paid to Rudolph Escalante will be $74.52. Second, no other benefit, 
incentive, compensation in lieu of benefits, or other forms of compensation in addition to the 
hourly pay rate are being provided. 

 

Due to the circumstances the City is facing with the retirement of Chief Escalante, the City has 
identified the need for the specialized skills associated with the position of the Chief of Police to 
be filled for a limited duration to prevent stoppage of public business and to ensure the 
organizational integrity of the Police Department. Staff is recommending that Rudolph Escalante 
be hired as a retired annuitant, starting on October 1, 2016, to work as the Interim Chief of 
Police through June 30, 2017, or until a new Chief of Police has been hired.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: It is anticipated that the hours required in this agreement will be significantly 
less the current salary and benefits of the Chief of Police position. 
 

 
Report Prepared By:   Larry Laurent 
 Assistant to the City Manager 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

10.C

Packet Pg. 54



Chief of Police - Retired Annuitant  
September 22, 2016 
 
 
 

DRAFT RESOLUTION 
 

RESOLUTION FOR EXCEPTION TO THE 180-DAY WAIT PERIOD 

GC sections 7522.56 & 21224 

 

WHEREAS, in compliance with Government Code section 7522.56 the City of Capitola must 
provide CalPERS this certification resolution when hiring a retiree before 180 days has 
passed since his or her retirement date; and 

 
WHEREAS, Rudolph Escalante retired from City of Capitola in the position of Chief of 
Police, effective September 30, 2016; and 

 
WHEREAS, section 7522.56 requires that post-retirement employment commence no 
earlier than 180 days after the retirement date, which is (date of 

181
st 

day after retirement) without this certification resolution; and 

 
WHEREAS, section 7522.56 provides that this exception to the 180 day wait period shall not 

apply if the retiree accepts any retirement-related incentive; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Capitola City Council, the City of Capitola and Rudolph Escalante 

certify that Rudolph Escalante has not and will not receive a Golden Handshake or any 
other retirement-related incentive; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Capitola City Council hereby appoints Rudolph Escalante as an extra help 
retired annuitant to perform the duties of the Chief of Police for the City of Capitola under 
Government Code section 21224, effective October 1, 2016 and 

 
WHEREAS, the entire employment agreement, contract or appointment document 

between Rudolph Escalante and the City of Capitola has been reviewed by this body and 
is attached herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, no matters, issues, terms or conditions related to this employment and 

appointment have been or will be placed on a consent calendar; and 

 
WHEREAS, the employment shall be limited to 960 hours per fiscal year; and 

 
WHEREAS, the compensation paid to retirees cannot be less than the minimum nor exceed 

the maximum monthly base salary paid to other employees performing comparable duties, 
divided by 173.333 to equal the hourly rate; and 

 
WHEREAS, the maximum base salary for this position is $12916.00 and the hourly 
equivalent is $74.52, and the minimum base salary for this position is $10667.00 and the 
hourly equivalent is $61.54; and  
 
WHEREAS, the hourly rate paid to Rudolph Escalante will be $74.52; and 

 
WHEREAS, Rudolph Escalante has not and will not receive any other benefit, 

10.C

Packet Pg. 55



Chief of Police - Retired Annuitant  
September 22, 2016 
 
incentive, compensation in lieu of benefit or other form of compensation in addition to 

this hourly pay rate; and 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Capitola City Council hereby certifies the nature of 

the appointment of Rudolph Escalante as described herein and detailed in the attached 
employment agreement/contract/appointment document and that this appointment is 
necessary to fill the critically needed position of Chief of Police for the City of Capitola by 
October 1, 2016 because of Chief Escalante's specialized skills and to avoid any potential 
disruption to emergency services. 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted by the City Council of 
the City of Capitola on the 22nd day of September, 2016, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:   
NOES:    
ABSENT:  

 ______________________ 
Ed Bottorff, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

_______________________, CMC 
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk 

10.C

Packet Pg. 56



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 22, 2016 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Presentation Regarding Propositions 65 and 67  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive presentation and provide direction.  
 
BACKGROUND: At the September 8, 2016 City Council meeting, the City Council approved a 

Resolution in support of Proposition 67. During the discussion, there was some confusion 

regarding the provisions of Proposition 65 and Proposition 67. Council requested staff make a 

presentation about the two propositions. 

In 2013 the City enacted a Single Use Plastic Bag Ordinance (Ordinance No. 977) which would 

not be affected by either Proposition 65 or Proposition 67. 

DISCUSSION: On the November 8, 2016 election ballot, there are two Propositions that involve 

single use and carryout bags. The two ballot measures contain conflicting provisions on how 

revenue from state-mandated sale of carryout bags would be distributed. 

Proposition 67, which is a referendum that, if approved, would ratify Senate Bill 270 (2014). 
Proposition 67 will mandate stores to charge 10 cents for recycled, compostable and reusable 
grocery bags. Proposition 67 would allow retail establishments to keep the funds collected for 

single use recycled, compostable and reusable grocery bags. On September 8 the City took a 
position in support of Proposition 67. 

Proposition 65, if approved, will require all revenue generated by state-mandated sale of 
carryout bags to be earmarked for the Environmental Protection and Enhancement Fund. This 
fund would be administered by the State of California Wildlife Conservation Board. Stores would 
not keep the revenues for the carryout bags. 

Opponents make the following arguments in opposition of Proposition 65: 

 The proposition would only serve the interests of plastic bag companies and would 
distract from phasing out plastic bags entirely. 

 The proposition would do little to help the environment, as plastic bags need to be 
eliminated completely in order to have an effective impact. 

Supporters make the following arguments in support of Proposition 65: 

 The proposition would stop the deal made between legislators and lobbyists that allowed 
grocery stores to keep plastic bag fee revenue as extra profits. 

 The proposition would dedicate plastic bag fee revenue to environmental projects like 
drought relief and litter removal, and would make the California Wildlife Conservation 

10.D

Packet Pg. 57



Proposition 65 and Proposition 67  
September 22, 2016 
 

Board responsible for allocating the revenue generated from plastic bag fees. 

The City of Capitola enacted a single use plastic bag ordinance in 2013 and would not be 
affected by either Proposition 65 or Proposition 67. 

FISCAL IMPACT: There is no fiscal impact for the City 

 
 

Report Prepared By:   Larry Laurent 
 Assistant to the City Manager 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

10.D

Packet Pg. 58


	Agenda Packet
	CLOSED SESSION
	EXISTING LITIGATION

	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	A. Roll Call

	2. PRESENTATIONS
	A. Police Chief Proclamations
	Printout: Police Chief Proclamations
	1. Retiring Police Chief Escalante Proclamation

	B. Legislative Update Provided by Assemblymember Mark Stone

	3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
	4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	6. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
	8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS
	A. Museum Board Appointment
	Printout: Museum Board Appointment
	1. Applications
	2. Museum Board Recommendation


	9. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. Approval of City Check Registers
	Printout: Approval of City Check Registers
	1. 08-05-16 City Check Register
	2. 08-12-16 City Check Register
	3. 08-19-16 City Check Register
	4. 08-26-16 City Check Register


	10. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. Community Choice Energy JPA Conceptual Review
	Printout: Community Choice Energy JPA Conceptual Review

	B. In-Lieu Parking Fee Policy
	Printout: In-Lieu Parking Fee Policy
	1. Revised Administrative Policy I-33 - In-Lieu Parking Fee Program

	C. Chief of Police - Retired Annuitant
	Printout: Chief of Police - Retired Annuitant

	D. Proposition 65 and Proposition 67
	Printout: Proposition 65 and Proposition 67


	11. ADJOURNMENT

	Appendix
	2.A · Police Chief Proclamations
	2.A.1 · Retiring Police Chief Escalante Proclamation

	8.A · Museum Board Appointment
	8.A.1 · Applications
	8.A.2 · Museum Board Recommendation

	9.A · Approval of City Check Registers
	9.A.1 · 08-05-16 City Check Register
	9.A.2 · 08-12-16 City Check Register
	9.A.3 · 08-19-16 City Check Register
	9.A.4 · 08-26-16 City Check Register

	10.A · Community Choice Energy JPA Conceptual Review
	10.B · In-Lieu Parking Fee Policy
	10.B.1 · Revised Administrative Policy I-33 - In-Lieu Parking Fee Program

	10.C · Chief of Police - Retired Annuitant
	10.D · Proposition 65 and Proposition 67


